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INTRODUCTION

The purpose of this report is to: (1) describe the
current condition of the mile markers of the
original boundary of the District of Columbia put
in plice by Andrew Ellicott during 1791.1792;
(2) explain previous efforts to protect the mark-
crs - particularly by the Daughlers of the American
Revolation; (3) solicit comments on proposed rec-
ommendations for the perpetual. protection and
preservation of these historic monuments; {4) to
acquaint citizens and visitors to the area with the
physical location of the boundaries of the Capital
City, which were determined by a.survey over 180
years ago. 5
A sccondary purpose uf Lthe report is Lo serve as a
guide. Using the locational maps and descriptions il
is now possible to casily locate; cach boundary
stone in its approximate original sgtling. Suggested
methods lor viewing the markers, depending on
time, include a tour by neighborhood, quadrant or
state. A round trip including stops at all of the
markers provides a {ascinating experience,
|

In 1846 the Federal Government 1‘g|:lr0ccdcd o the
State of Virginia the thirty-three [square miles of
land the State had ceded 1o the Federal Govern-
ment by the Act ol December 3, 1789. At the time
of original survey forty markers were put in place
along the boundary of the ten mile square, The
majority are still in place. All of the markers have
been designated as Category 11 Landmarks* by the
Joint Committee on Landmarks of the Natonal
Capital. Fourteen are located in Virginia and
twenty six are located along the District-Maryland

boundary line. i

e - Lo !

*Landmarks ol importance which contriburd significantly to the
cultural heritage or visual beaury and interest of the Districy of
Columbia and its cnvirons, and which should be preserved or re-
stored il possible.

Unveiling of the Northeast No. 1 Mile Marker
Fence by the DAR on June 13, 1916
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HIGTORY

Congress  discussed the need lor, a permanent
capital as carly as 1779 but did not give the matter
serious consideration until 1783. The need for a
permanent Scat of Government was accepted by
Congress {from the very beginning, but final selec
tion of the site came only after years of contro-
versy and debate. !

During 1783 five sites were offered: Kingston, New
York was willing to give Congress “cxempt jurisdic-
tion” over one square mile within the town limits;
Annapolis, Maryland offered 300 I'Fu::r(:s, its state
house, and accommodations lor the President and
legislators; New jerscy was willing IIE) give Congress
Jurisdiction over twenty square miles anywhere in
the state and to donate 30,000 paunds in spccie
for any necessary buildings; Nottingham, New
Jersey, at the head of the Delaware, agreed Lo
donate as much territory as Congress wished; and
the Virginia legislature offered ils[capital al Wil-
liamsburg, all of the public buildings, 300 acres
adjoining the city, and 100,000 p(.?unds in state’s
currency to build “hotels™ for the delegates o
Congress. Il Williamsburg were unaceeptable the
Virginia legislators were willing (o] cede territory
anywhere along the Potomac (the lqgcal inhabitants
were 1o determine the extent ol Congressional
Jurisdiction over the cession) and ito appropriate
funds Tor “hotels,” and they weny on to supuest
that Maryland make an equal, contiguous cession
on the Maryland side ol the river. This was the first
recorded mention of land adjacent Tu the Potomac
River us a possible site [or the capital. Congress had
been meeting in Philadelphia, but adjourned hastily
late: m July 1783 after being lthreatened by
250-300 soldiers demanding back;pay from the
Federal Government. The legislators then recon-
vened at Princeton, New Jersey and immediately
took up the “residence question.’! A committee
was appointed to delermine how large u site for a
capital was needed and the extent of Congressional
Northwest No. 4 Mile Marker !




Jurisdiction over .it. In September 1783 the com-
mittece recommended that the site be between
three and six miles square and that Congress have
exclusive jurisdiction over it, bul no action was
taken on these rebommendations.

When  actual dnlll)atc on the residence question
began during the first week in October 1783
southern delegaibs supported the idea of a site on
the Potomac. Southern opinion notwithstanding,
however, Congress voted at the end of the week (o
establish a permincnt scat just above Trenton at
the falls of LthDclawurc, and appointed a com-
mittee to inspect the proposed site. Ten days later
on October 17 [Elbridge Gerry of Massachusetts
introduced a resblution proposing that a national
capital be located at or near the lower falls of the
Potomac as well jas at the [alls of the Delaware and
that Congress meet in the two capitals alternatcly.
Gerry maintained that (wo capitals were necessary
because a majority of Congress would never permit
just onc location! Lo enjoy all the benefits of being
the capital. But Gerry’s scheme failed to gain
necessary suppotlt, and in April 1784, while meet-
ing at Annapolis, Congress passed a resolution
canceling a pladned inspection trip. During this
session Congress, authorized the appointment of
three commissioners to acquire Jand for a two-to-
threc mile squart district along the Delaware and
to begin construction of public buildings. Those
MCasurcs were n(‘it carried oul.

In late 1786 the residence question was taken up
again when suppbrlcrs of a Potomac site launched
yet another elfoft to substitute their site for one
on the Delawaré. No decision was reached, and
once the Constitutional Convention convened in
February 1787 the matter of the capital's location
[aded into the background,

The new Constitition was transmitted to Congress
in September 1787. Scction 8, Article 1 included
among Congress™ enumerated powers the right “to
exercise exclusive legislation in all cases whatso-
ever, over such District (not exceeding ten miles

squarc) as may, by Cession of particular States, and
the Acceptance of Congress, become the Seat of
Government of the United States. . . but it made
no mention of the new capital’s location.

The Tirst Congress under the Constitution met in
New York City (where the government had becn
since January 1785) in April 1789, and the city
made cvery elfort to convince the legislators o
select it as the permanent capital. The New
Yorkers [ailed in their efforts, and in August 1789
the debate began once again. This time it centered
on Georgetown on the Potomac and Wrights Ferry,
Pennsylvania ncar the falls of the Susquehanna.
Late in September the House approved the Wrights
Ferry site, despite the efforts of the Potomac
advocates led by James Madison and Richard Bland
Lee. The Scnate rejecled Wrights Ferry and sug-
gested Germantown and part of Philadelphia’s
northern libertics as an alternative, but the session
ended before a compromise was reached.

In June 1790 a Senate committee reported favor-
ably on a proposal to locate the capital on the
Maryland side of the Potomac. The full Senate
approved the measure on July 1, 1790 by a votc of
14 to 12 and sent it to the House.

Although strongly opposed in the House the bill
passed by 32 to 29 on July 9th. Finally, on
July 16, 1790 the President signed the Residence
Act into law. The act's passage was closely tied to
passage ol Treasury Secretary Alexander Hamil-
ton’s  Assumption Act which authorized Federal
payment of the states” war debts., Hamilton per-
suaded northern representatives who favored the
Assumption Act to agree to a capital on the
Potomac in exchange for southern support of
payment of the states’ debts by the Federal
government. The  Assumption Act  was passed
carly in August 1790,

The general site authorized by the Residence
Act was large, consisting of the region between
the Eastern Branch (today the Anacostia River)




Map of Mary!&n& and
P. Jefferson, 1751

Vfr;ginfa by J.- F}'y c’-ncli‘

and the Conococheague, a tribulary which joins
the Potomac at Williamsport, Maryland, approxi-
mately 70 miles northwest of the Eastern Branch.
Under the terms of the Act final selection of the
ten mile square which was to comprise the actual
capital rested with the President. The President
also was authorized to appoint three commis.
sioners to supervise a survey of the site and to
purchase land for the government.

President  Washington went 10 Georgelown in
October 1790, and for several days toured the
entire stretch of river designated in the Residence
Act. Before departing he assured local residents
that he would announce his choice for the exact

location within a few months. On his return to
Philadelphia the President ordered plats of three
scctions of the Potomac shore: the vicinity of the
Conocuchcaguc; the mouth of the Monacacy, 40
miles upriver from Georgetown; and the vicinity of
Georgetown. |

t

Late in January 1791 Washinglo:T appointed the
three commissioners authorized in the Residence
Act - Thomas Johnson and Danicl Carroll, both of
Maryland, and David Stuart of Virginia - to act as
the government's official represcptatives. In an
attempt to outmancuver local real estate specula-
tors the President instructed Col. William Deakins
and Benjamin Stoddert of Georgetown to buy
property in the vicinity of Georgetown withoul
admitting that they werce acting !}or the govern-
ment. The same day-he appointed the commis-
sioners, January 24, 1791, Washinton issued a
proclamation dirccting the commis‘sioncrs “1o sur-
vey and limit a part of the territory; of the ten mile
square on both sides of the river Potomac so as to
comprehend Georgetown in Maryland and to ex-
tend to the Eastern Branch.” r

1

Washington had consulted with Sccretary of State
Thomas Jefferson about an exact site in December
1790. With an eye to potential commercial devel-
opment Jelferson suggested that the castern shore
of the Eastern Branch be included and that the
lower limit of the Federal territory be extended
south to include the port ol Alexandria and its
bustling wharves. The President rejected Jelferson’s
vicw that the site of the Scat ol Government
needed to cover only 1500 acres (Washington
envisioned a site nearly four times that size). In
January 1791 the President suggested to Congress
that the Residence Act be amcni;lcd in order 10
“authorize the location of the rdsidence at the
lower end of the present site so as {lo comprchend
the Eustern Branch itself and some ol the lower
country on its lower side in Maryland and the town
ol Alexandria in Virginia.” Congress approved the
desired amendment without debate on March 3,
1791, thereby extending the boundary to include
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Major Andrew Ellicott

the additional territory jellerson had suggested in
1790.

Sccretary Jelferson sent detailed instructions to
Major Andrew Ellicott of Philadelphia carly in
February 1791, and requested that he begin the
survey of the ten mile square at once. Ellicott had
been a professional surveyor most of his adult life,
was a member of the American Philosophical
Socicty and owned what have been described as
the [inest surveying instruments in the Unijted
States at that time. (These instruments are now
housed in the National Museum of History and
Technology, Smithsonian Institution.) Born in

Bucks County, Pennsylvania in 1754 he moved his
family o Ellicott’s Upper Mills {which his lather
had established several years carlier) near Baltimore
in 1774, and then to Ballimo"rc m 1785 and
Philadelphia in 1789. Ellicott and David Ritten-
house of Philadelphia were app Pntcd in 1785 to
locate Pennsylvania’s western and, northern bound-
artes. During 1788 Ellicou and his younger
brothers surveyed the western pottions of the New
York/Pennsylvania boundary; thig survey included
the lirst accurate measurement; of  “the entire
fength of the Niagara River, the!fali of the river
from Lake Erie to Lake Ontario, and the height of
the great [alls and the rapids.”* -

After his work on the capital site m 1791-93
Ellicott spent a number of yecars, surveying roads
from central Pennsylvania to Presque Isle on Lake
Eric and laying out lots in Presque Isle (now Crie,
Pennsylvania). From 1796 to 18r00 he served as
United States Commissioner to Iderermine “‘the
boundary between the United iSlatcs and the
possessions ol his Catholic Majesty in America.”
He did other survey work in Pennsylvania and
Georgia between 1803 and 18]1. He was ap-
pointed professor of mathematics iat West Point in
1815, and in 1817, was ordered ;10 Montreal “10
make astronomical observations and to carry into
cifect some of the articles of| the Treaty of
Ghent.”* Ellicott died at West Poi?t in 1820 at the
age of 67. |
|

Ellicott accepted the commission ;to survey the ten
mile square and immediately began the search lor a
competent assistant who could make the necessary
astronomical observations. His younger brothers,
Joseph and Benjamin (who hadTassichd him in
western Pennsylvania and who later did join him in
working on the survey of the capital), were both
surveying in New York State and his younger
cousin, George Ellicott of Lilicpte's Mills,  was

|
*Sally K. Alexander, A Sketch of the Life of Major Andrew
Ellicott,” Records of Calumbia Ilistorcal Saciety, Vol. 2 (1899),
pp. 168-169. !




unable to leavd his obligations there. However,
George Ellicott |did suggest that the elder Ellicott
contact a friend and neighbor of his, Benjamin
Banneker. Banm_':kcr was a free black who had been
born ncar the [Mills in 1731. Like thc younger
Ellicott, Banneker had a lifelong interest in mathe-
matics and had [succeeded in teaching himself the
basic principles| of astronomy. He gained great
notoricty beford his death in 1806 for the ephem-
erides which he kalculated for the years 1792-1796
and lor the alma.lnacs in which they were published.
With Jelferson's approval Andrew Lllicott retained
Banncker w make the astronomical obscrvations
and the calculdtions nccessary o cstablish the
tocation ol the [south corner stone while Ellicout
and the [licld crews did the actual surveying.
Banncker who was over 60 at the time worked on
the survey from February 1791 o April 1791,
when ill health fbreed him to return home.

A Dbasc camp was set up near Jones’ Point where

Hunting Creck met the Potomac, and the actual

survey began dn February 12, 1791, Ellicott’s

procedure Tor Idying out the squarc was a simple
1

one. [

..traced a m:-lin’:'an at jones' Point on the west
side of the Pdltonmc River and then laid off an
angle of 459 from this meridian to the north-
west, and condinued a straight line in that direc-
tion for len }m'k's. He made a right angle at
the termination of this line with a straigh!t line
which he carried i a northeasterly direction,
also for ten miles, and then Jrom the termina-
tion of this stcond line he carried vet a third
line for the same distance al a right angle lo it,
to the southedst. Finally he carried a line from
the terminal ;J,or'n! al fones' Point to meet the
termunation of the third line, He measured these
lines by means of a chain, which he examied
and correcledicach dav to ensure that the links
had not opencd and that there was no other
change affecting its accuracy. He plumbed it

wherever the ground proved to be uneven, and
traced 1t with his transit and cqual altitude in-
strument, *

By mid-March the preliminary survey had pro-
gressed far enough for Ellicott to move his lodgings
to Georgetown and establish an office there. He
was joined by Major Pierre Charles L'Enfant who
had been sclected 1o prepare the actual plan of the
new city Lo be created within the ten mile square.

President Washington arrived in Georgetown late in
March in order to mect with the local landowners
and to examine Ellicott’s surveys and L’Enfant’s
plans. The President and the three commissioners
rode over the site once again, He then met with
Georgetown’s  officials and the landowners' at
Suters Tavern (located on the northwest corner of
3lst and K Strects where a sidewalk placque
identifies the site today) and explained the govern-
ment's terms for acquiring the land for the pro-
poscd Federal territory. Washingion cnjoved din-
ner that evening, at the home of his old friend
Uriah Forrest and the next day again met with the
landowners who had decided to accept his terms.
The President then issued a proclamation giving the
exact boundaries ol the "district for the permanent
scat of government.” A number of the landowners
protested that the arca announced was grealer than
that to which they had agreed, and it was latc
Junc 1791 belore all of them signed the necessary

deeds.

After Ellicott completed the preliminary survey of
the boundaries ol the Federal territory the south
corner stone was ceremoniously laid at Jones’
Point on April 15, 1791, Work then began on the
final survey ol the boundaries and of the major
streets and avenues called for in L'Enfant’s plan.
L'Enlant’s relationship with the Commissioners
steadily deteriorated during 1791, and in March

*Silvio A. Bedini, The Life of Henjamin Banncker, New York:
Charles Scribners Sons {1972), pp. 116-117.




1792, Ellicott was placed in charge ol the entire
project, including the plan of the city. On Janu-
ary 1, 1793 FEllicout submitted a formal report
certfying  that the boundary survey had been
completed and the markers (stones) set. He indi-
cated that the survey:

. dmes are opened and cleared gorty feet wide
that s twenty feet on cach side of the lines
timiting the Tervitory, and in order to perpetu-
ale the work I have set up square mile stones
marked progressively with the wumber of miles
from the beginning on fones' Point to the West
corner thenee from the West corner to the North

_._‘__ﬁLﬁ N
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Diagram Showing Scheme of Lettering on the
Mile and Corner Stones

corner to the East corner and from thence to the
place of beginning on funes Point ; except it a
Jew cases where the miles termiwated on decliv-
ities or I walters: the stones are then placed on
the first firm ground, and their irue distances in

miles and poles marked on them. On the sides of

the stones fucing the Terrtory is mscribed,
Jurisdiction of the Uwiled States,” Ow the
opposite side of those placed in the common-
wealth of Virginda is insertbed *Virginia. " And on
those in the State of Marviand, ‘Marylund.” On
the third and fourth sides, or fuces, inseribed the
year (n o which the stone was set up, and the
conditions  of  the Magnetic Needle at that
place.
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There has been o gradual deterioration ol the
historic  boundary  murkers of  the Disuia of
Columbia brought about by general neglect and a
lack  of concern. Many ol these stwones - first
monuments 1o be erected in the new National
Capital - bave been buried or destroved. In general,
chronological duta have revenled that stones on
private properey have been better protected than
those located on public land; therelore, it is hoped
that this report will create o public awareness of
the deterioration ol the markers and of the need 1o
protect and preserve  them as historical monu-
ments.

North Corner Stone
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SQUTII CORNER STONE-Located in the scawall in front of the
Jones® Point Lighthouse on the Potomac River side in Alexandria,
this stone was buried for 12) years. In 1855 the US. Government
buill a lighthouse ncar the stonc at Jones' Point. Six years later a
scawall was construcied over the stone where it remained covered
until 1912, At present the stonc, resting in the scawall, can be
viewed only from the water, Al low tide it is possible to walk out on
the rver bed and see the stone; however, it is in poor condition,
covered willi moss and littered with trash.

SOUTHWEST NO. | MILE MARKER—-AL the Southwest corner of
the intersection of Wilkes and §. Payne Swrects in Alexandria, a
stone marks the end of the first mile of the survey. It is located near
the sidewalk under a large tree in the [ronr yard of a row house.
Easily secn from an aulomobile 1his marker is in very pood
condition, and the inscriptions remain legible.

SOUTHWEST NO. 2 MILE MARKER~Fronting on the cast side of
Russell Road just north of King Strect is a prominently displayed
stone whichh can be easily seen; however, this marker bears no
inscriptions, and thercforc is abviously not one of the originat
boundary sloncs.




SOUTHWEST NO. 3 MILE MARKER —Thc [irst stonc in Virginia to
be placed at other than equal miles rests at the north end of the
parking lol1 of the First Baptlist Church, 2932 King Sirect,
Alexandria. Since the end of the mile was in 2 ravine, this marker is
located slightly less than three miles from the south comer.
Although badly chipped it is fairly well protected. Weeds and vines,
however, have obscured il somewhat, and it is best viewed from the
parking lot.

SOUTHWEST NO. 4 MILE MARKER-Partially concealed by weeds
and trash the marker is focated adjacent to Fairlington Village at the
edge of King Street just north of Wakelield Strect. It has been
breken off cven with the ground, and the stump partially covercd
by rcconstruction of the highway. It is best scen by parking on
Wakelicld Streel and viewing the stone on {oot,

SOUTHWEST NO. 5 MILE MARKER-This stonc is in a nice setting
on the edge of a stream valley park next to Walter Reed Parkway
just cast of King Strect. As with number fout it has been broken off
near the ground. Rebuilding of the rozdway has almost covered the
stone; however, the fence is casily scen.
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SQUTHWEST NO. 6 MILE MARKER—The sccond Virginia stone 10
be placed at an uneven distance (this time because the end of the
mile was in a stream}, this marker has been moved and is now in the
mcdian strip of Jeflerson Street just south of Columbia Pike in
Arlington, It was relocated because it’s original site is now accupicd
by an apartmeat, Although badly cracked it has been repaired and
resis in a prominent location.

SOUTHWEST NO. 7 MILE MARKER-The only stone in this
quadrant that cannot be seen from the sireel is next to a fence on
the edge of a woods some distance from a road. It is well protceied
by surrounding vegelation; nevertheless, it remains badly chipped
and in very poor condition. Much of its destruction has been
artributed 1o bullets or shot.

SOUTHWEST NO. B MILE MARKER -After disappearing twice this
stonc has been recovered and is now located on the edge of a
parking lot behind an apartment building at the intersection of John
Marshall Drive and Wilson Blvd. in Arlington. Despite j1s well
protecied locatien within an iron enclosure, the marker, which had
been relocated and rotated, is badly chipped and weathered.
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SOQUTHWEST NO. 9 MILE MARKER-A stream valley park along
Van Buren Street north of Columbia Street in Falls Church is the
sctting for this boundary stone. The marker is in very good
condition - probably because of its protecled location - and is easily
seen from an automobile.

WEST CORNER STONE—Located off of Meridian Street just south
of West Street in Falls Church, this marker is in perhaps the nicest
setting of all the boundary stones. It rests in an attractive park
which i3 cleared and fenced. An iron enclosure surmounds both the
stone and stump of a large oak tree that used to stand beside it. Two
rows of white stones have been laid across the area, extending from
the comner atenc thal marks the actuzl boundary Line. Unlike the
north and cast markers the west stone bears horizontal inscriptions.

NORTHWEST NO. 1 MILE MARKER ~The side yard of a home at
1607 Powalon Street on the Arlington County line is the location
of this fairly well maintained stone. Iis protected wooded environ-
ment, however, obscures a view ol the marker from the road.
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NORTHWEST NO. 2 MILE MARKER-Chipped and in poor
condition, this stone is located on the edge of 1 deep woods next Lo
a private home ar 5298 Old Dominion Drive. Because of its well
pratected setting it is necessary to drive up to the house 1o view the
marker,

NORTHWEST NO. 3 MILE MARKER—Located in the center of the
backyard of a home at 4018 Tazwell Street, Arlington, this slightly
chipped stonc rests in a well protected sctting. It was placed slightly
beyond its mile distance from NW 2 because the higher, firmer
ground would provide a more permanent site, The marker must be
scen on {oot, as il is not visible from the street.

NORTHWEST NO. 4 MILE MARKER—The first stone in Maryland
and the first to have a protective fence around it, this ivy covered
slone is Jocated in the back yard of a home within the fenced
Dalecarlia Reservation. It is located beyond its proper location
which would have been in the Polomac Gorge. It is also the first
stonc to bear the inscription 1792, as do all the Maryland markers.
Because of its location behind the house it is not visible from the
street; however, it is casily accessible on foot.
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NORTHWEST NO. 5§ MILE MARKER-The sccond stone within the
Dalecartia Reservation, this one is located ncar Westmoreland Circle
at Massachusetis Avenue in the mist of a deep woods. In only fair
ceondition the marker cannot be seen from an autemobile; permis-
sion to vicw it must be obtained from reservoir guards.

NORTHWEST NO. 6§ MILE MARKER ~This stonc is badly damaged
and rests within an iron lenee in the middle of a small field along
Western Avenue near Fessenden Strect. It is casily scen [rom an
automobile on Western Avenue or by driving along Park Place which
branches from Western,

NORTHWEST NO. 7 MILE MARKER-In pcrfect condition this
stone it located in the well-manicured ltont jawn of a home at 5600
Western Avenuc. It's protective grili is missing: nevertheless, the
stonc is obviously well cared for, and the very line carvings are
legible, A high hedge blocks a view of the marker {rom the road, but
it is casily accessible on [ool,
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NORTHWEST NO. 8 MILE MARKER-Located in the front yard of
a private home at 6422 Western Avenue at Pinchurst Circle, this
stone is well protecied and remains in good condition, It can be scen
from an automobile. Surveys of the boundary markers indicate that
NW 7 and NW 8 arc the only stones preciscly onc mile apart. These
same two arc alio the only oncs without protective iron grill
enclosures.

NORTHWEST NO. 9 MILE MARKER—The site of this stone is a
wooded arca of Rock Creek Park about 50 yards [rom the end of
Western and Orcgon Avenues, N.W. Although chipped somcwhat,
this stane is in fair condition and casily accessible by a foot path
into the park.

NORTH CORNER STONE-Thec North Corner Stone is located
immediately south of East-West Highway west of 16th Sureci. It is
in good condition despite the trash and leaf littered environment
which also cantributes to its refative obscurity.
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-NORTHEAST NO. 1 MILE MARKER-A bronze plague in the
sidewalk in front of a shop at 7847 Eastern Avenue replaces this
marker. Et i5 possible that the stonc and fence have been put in
storage; however, there is no evidence to bear this out. This site and
SW 2 arc the only ones where the boundary stone is missing,

NORTHEAST NQ. 2 MILE MARKER—Easily seen from an aute-
mobile this stone is located on the comer of a lawn near Maple and
Carroll Avenue in Takoma Park. It has remained in good condition
throughout the years,

NORTHEAST NO. 3 MILE MARKER—Located on the edge of a
commercial parking lot on Eastern Avenue just south of New
Hampshire, this stonc has sunk into the ground somewhat and is
difficult to sec from an automobile. The battered iron enclosure is
partially covered by weeds and has become filled with trash.



NORTHEAST NO. 4 MILE MARKER-Fartially covercd during
voad construction, Lhis stone is located under a large tree al the side
of Eastern Avenuc just north of Sargent Road. It is in good
condition, however, and can casily be seen Erom the street.

NORTHEAST NO. 5 MILE MARKER—A well maintained private
lawn offers good protection for this stone, located at 4609 Eastern
Avenue. In good condition this marker is easily seen from an
automobile,

NORTHEAST NO. 6 MILE MARKER-A privatc home at 3601
Eastern Avenue is the site for this well protected stone, The marker
rcmains in very good condition despite its location for over a
century and a halfl ncar one of the oldest roads leading into
Washington, Tt has been set in cement, and can casily be scen from
the strect.




NORTHEAST NOQ. 7 MILE MARKER.~An iron band holds together
this stone which is located in Fort Lincoln Cemectery near an
cquipment storage facility. Sunken and nearly covered with leaves
and mulch, it is not visible from Bladensburg Road but can be
reached through the cemetery.

NORTHEAST NO. 8 MILE MARKER-This diflicult to find stonc
rests in a clearing in a wooded arca behind an apariment
development near the intersection of Easlern and Kenilworth
Avenues in the vicinity of the Aquatic Gardens. It has been badly
ravaged by what appears ta have been bullets.



NORTHEAST NO. 9 MILE MARKER-This well proteciled stone is
in the [ront yard of a private home at 919 Eastern Avenue. At one
time a large cherry Lree next lo the marker threatened 1o up-
heave it. Aside from this it has remained in excellent condition.

EAST CORNER STONE-The East marker - as with other comer
markers - is larger and marked dificrently from the intermediate
stones. Lacated just southeast of the intersection of Eastern and
Southern Avenues, the stone is surrounded by leaves, weeds and
wrash. It cannot be seen from an automobile but is casily identifiable
by the iron fence.

SOUTHEAST NO. | MILE MARKER—Located near a small trash
dump just east of 54th and D Strcets this marker is almost
complctely covered with weeds and vines, It is in cxeellent
condition, and although nol visible from the street is easily reached
on foot.

25



SOUTHEAST NO. 2 MILE MARKER-Nicely intcgrated into a weli
manicured front lawn at 4345 Southcrn Avenue the stone is
surrounded by low wvegetation and a flagstone wall. A {lagpolc
further enhances the setting for this well preserved marker which is
difficult 10 see becausce of the bushes around it,

SOUTHEAST NO. 3 MILE MARKER~This marker is larger than
the other intcrmediate stones, and has been incorporated into a
niche in a hedge bordering parden apartments at 8908 Southern
Avenue, Although somewhal weathered and chipped it is easily
recognized from the street,

SQUTHEAST NO. 4 MILE MARKER—AIll that remains of this
slone is an indistinguishable nub. It is located next to Naylor Road
near the intersection of Suitland Parkway. Although surrounded by
trash it can be scen [rom the road.



SOUTHEAST NO. 5 MILE MARKER-Covered by weeds and grass
this stene tests in the middle of an open field just southeast of the
intersection of Mississippi and Southern Avenues. It is difficult to
view through the vegetation, but the silc is easily seen from
Southern Avenue.

SOUTHEAST NO. 6 MILE MARKER—Auractive landscaping ele-
ments, including an old gas lamp, provide a beautiful setting for this
stanc. Located near the entrance of the Henry Gilpin Company at
901 Southern Avenue, it is in cxcellent condition and exhibita
perhaps the best remaining example of the beautiful carving on all
of the original markers. 1t is visible from Southern Avenue.

SOQUTHEAST NO. 7 MILE MARKER-AIl that remains of this
stone is a small grass covercd nub. The cnclosure has been damaged
by cars and vandals and is cluttered with trash. Only about 10 fecet
from the heavily traveled highway the sionc rests near Oxon Run
just south of Southern Avenue.
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SOUTHEAST NO. 8 MILE MARKER —The site for this stone is now
a large landfill operation at D.GC. Village. The stone itsclf has
apparently been placed in storage and will be raset after the landfill
it completed.

SOUTHEAST NO. 9 MILE MARKER—The last stonc in Maryland,
this has been known in the past as the Fox Fermy Milestone -
probably because of its locatlon in the Potomac riverbed at Fox’s
Ferry. It has been submerged in the river several times since the
original survey and was moved to higher ground and resct in 1969.
However, it has nol been determined if the new site marks the
actual District-Maryland boundary,

Examples of Neglect. 1. Southeast No. 7 Mile
Marker; 2, Southwest No. 3 Mile Marker: 3.
Southeast No. 4 Mile Marker; 4. Southeast
No. I Mile Marker
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STONE

SOUTH STONE *

5hy-1
SW-2

SW.3
Sw- "
S5

SW-6

SwW.7

SW-8

S5W-9

WEST STONE

NW-1

NWw.2

NW-%

N4

NW-5

NW.6

NW-7

NW-8

NW-9

SUMMARY OF BOUNDARY STONE LOCATIONS, OWNERSHIP AND CONDITION

OWNERSIIIPF"*

Public

Public
Public

Private
Public
Public
Public

Public

Private

Public
Public
Private
Privawe
Private

Public

Public
Privaic?
Privaie ?
Private

Publi¢

CONDITION

FairfPoor

Fair

Poor
Good
Broken ofl to

the Ground

Broken ofl near
the Ground
Fair

F'oor

FairfPoor

Good

Poor

Badly Chipped
FairfPoor
Good/Fair

Good{fFair

Fair
Very Poor

Very Good
(Raiscd in 1964}

Good{Fair
{No Fcnee)

ExcellentfGood

ORIGINAL
STONE

Yes

MOVED

No

Yes

No

Yes

Na

No

No

Nol(?)

No

LOCATION

Encased in Seawall hefore front door of Jones'
Point Lighthouse, Alexandria, Va.

S. Payne and Wilkes Sts., Alexandria, Va.

East side of Russell Road ncar King Strect,
Alexandria, Va.

Parking lot, First Baptist Church of Alexandria,
2932 King Street, Alexandria, Va,

Wakeficld and King Strects, Alcxandria, Va,

100 fect east of Route 7 on Walter Reed Drive,
Arlington, Va.

On median of Jefferson Street, 300 feel south
of Columbia Pike, Arlington, Va.

30 feet cast of path Icading to athletic field
from Carlyn Spring Road and Olds Street,
Arlingten, Va.

On edge of parking area, 100 feet from water
tower behind apariment building at John
Marshall and Wilson Boulevard, Arlington,
Va.

In park at 18th and Van Burcn Strects
Falls Church, Va.

West side of Meridian Street, 200 feel scuth of
West Street, Falls Church, Va.

Back yard of 3607 Powaton Strcet, Fairfax
Co., Va.

Side yard of 5298 Old Dominion Drive,
Fairlax, Va.

Back yard of 4013 Tazwell Strect, Fairlax,
Va.

Behind director's residences, 100 feet from
B&0O Railroad Georgetown spur in
Dalecarlia Reservation, D.C.

1/4 mile southwest of Westmoreland Circle
within Dalecarlia Reservation, D.C.

Western Avenue and Fessenden Streer, N.W.,
D.C.

5600 Western Avenue, D.C.

6400 Western Avenue, D.C.

50 yards into Rock Creck Park, down path
f[rom Western and Oregon Avenues, D.C.



STONE

NORTH STONEL

NE-1

NE-2

NE-3

NE-4

NI-5
NE-6
NE-7

NE-8

NE.9 *

EAST STONE °

SE-1

5E-2
SE-3
SE-4 "
SE-5

SE-6
SL-7
SE.8 7

SUMMARY OF BOUNDARY STONE LOCATIONS, OWNERSHII AND CUNDU LN —LOoRneey

OWNERSHIP

Public

Private

Public

Public

Privaw
Privatc

In Cemcerery

Public (#}

Private

Public

Public

Private
Private
Public
Public (?)

Privaie
Public

FPublic

Public

CONDITION

FairfPoar

GoodfFair

Fair

Good (Buried)

Good
Very Good
SpliL but Legible

Good

Eair

Good

Very Gaod

Very Good
FairfPoor
Extremely Poor

Eair

Excellent

Extremely Poor

= Indicates special need lor immediate altention.
* *The ownership column in this charl refors 1o ownership of Lhe land upon which each stone sits.

ORIGINAL

STONE

Yes

Missing

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

MOVED

Mo

No

No

No

No
Na ()

LOCATION

20 fect south af East-West Elighway, 1/10 milc
wesl of L6th Streer, N.W., DLC.

Brass plaque in sidewalk, 7847 Eastern Ave,
Silver Spring, Md.

FQO [ect norih of Carroll Avenue an west side
ol Maple Avenuc, Takoma Park, M.

Eastern Avenue and New Hampshire Avenue,
Irince Georges County, Md.

Eastern Avenue and Surgent Road,
Prince Georges County, Md,

4609 Eastern Avenue, N.E,, D.C,
3601 Eastern Avenuc & 3d1h Steer, N.E., D.C.

Aleng [ence between Fi. Lincoln Cemvrery and
Fi. Lincoln New Town, 100 feet suuth of
cquipment storage building, Prince Georges
County, Md.

200 yards northwest of intersection ol Eastern
Avenue and Kenilworth Avenue, Prince
Georges County, Md.

019 Eastern Avenue, Pringe Georges County,
Md.

50 Yards southeast of intersection of Fastern
Avenuc and Southern Avenue, D.C,

East end of D Strect. 100 feet beyand
B4ih Sireet, 5.E., D.C.

4345 Southern Avenue, D.C.
3908 Southern Avenue, D.C,
Nuylor Roud and District Line, D.C.

400 yards soulhwesl inla woods across Oxon
Hill Run from Mississippi Avenue and
Southern Avenue,D.C.

90} Southern Avenue, D.C.
South Capitol St. and Southern Avenue, THC,

To be relocated in vicinity of lower end of

D.C. Village, presumed to be in stotage, D.CL

The stones and fence were rescl in 1969,

)
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All boundary stones should be in the ownership
of the U.S. Government. There appears o be some
confusion as to the ownership of the boundary
markers. Some arc now on privately owned land.
In Virginia the problem is lurther compounded by
the Retrocession Act of 1846, Therelore, Congress
should adopt legislation that provides lor acquisi-
tion of the land and easements required 1o provide
for the protection and maintenance of these
historic markers. The amount ol land required
would have to be determined on an individual basis
for cach of the stones. Also the siting and location
of cach stone requires an individual assessment as
to the lands needed to properly protect them and
casements required to assure access [or mainte-
nance and public viewing. The amount ol land
acquired at ecach ol the corner stones should be
such as to create “*Cornerstone Parks.”

The boundary stones shouid be placed on the
National Register ol llistoric Places. Currently the
boundary markers are designated s Caregory 11
Landmarks by the Joint Committee on Landmarks
of the Nadonal Capital. Because the markers are
located in three dilferent jurisdictions, a nomina-
tion (orm should be prepared jointly by the Stute
Historic Preservation Offices in Md., Vi, and D.C.
and forwarded to the Department ol Interior.

An appropriate land managing agency or agencies
should be given specific responsibility for the pre-
servation and maintenance of the boundary stones
and fences. An “Office of the Keeper of the Bound-
ary Stones™ should be created, Initially this office

Northwest No. 3 Mile Marker




0 1

would be responsible for determining the amount
of land needed as suggested in the first recom-
mendation and  would  prepare the  landscape
plans lor these lands.  The importance of
creating  this office is to provide a control
point regarding the boundary stones.  Main-
(enance now occurs on a ‘“‘catch as catch can™
basis, and specilic responsibility for the condition
of these historic markers is dilficult to identily.

West Corner Stone Parl:, Falls Church, Va.

L‘t A “Cornerstone Park” should be created at each

ofl the four cornerstone markers. The corner stones
should be on larger land plots than the mnile stones.
Land set aside in these locations should be suffi-
cient 1o create a “Cornerstone Park” similar to the
West Stone Park. It may be desirable to place at
the site of the South Cornerstone, as M. L'Enfant
suggested to President Washington, *a majestic
column or a grand pvramid . .. {to) praoduce the
happiest cffect and completely finish the land-
scape.”

S ey A
SREf




Nt
2
ol

Jones® Point Lighthouse, Alexandria, Va., 197

2y

Create a “Boundary Stonc Museum.™ The light-
house at Jones' Point could be converted into such
i muscum, because this 15 the site of the Souih
Corncerstone which was the first stone pult in place
during the survey, Secondly, this lighthouse is one
of few remaining on the Potomae, and its restora-
ton Jor muscum purposes would presene an
imporant building (ype that might not otherwise
survive.

For historical integrity all boundary markers
that have been moved should be placed in their
original location. Il 1his is not possible, a plaque
should be placed at the stone site stating its origin-
al [ocation i, This stone has been relocated 150
vards southeast ol its original site.”
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Onc of the mile markers should be acquired by
the Smithsonian Institution for permanent preser-
vation. Because of deterioration of the mile stones
due 1o weathering (the sandstone used does not
weather well in the Washington climate), it is
suggested  that the best ol the remaining mile
markers, probably Southeast No. 6, should be
given to the Smithsonian Institution for permanent
preservation and display. This is a relucant recom-
mendation. However, uniess at least.one stone is
permancently  preserved  future  generations may
never sce an “original” boundary marker. This
stone would be replaced in the manner suggested in
the following recommendation.

Each of the missing, badly decayed stones or
broken stumps should be replaced. A number of
the mile markers are cither missing or have been
badly mutilated by weather, vandalism, ete. IL is
recommended that these stones be replaced by
duplicates with appropriate inseriptions. Sandstone
used in the original markers came [rom a quarry in
Aquia, Va. The DAR lences should be restored and
missing DAR plaques replaced. Any of the stonc
fragments removed should be carelully catalogued
and placed in the Boundary Stone Muscum as
suggested in recommendation five.

All of the stones should be treated with a
protective coating. All ol the existing or replaced
boundary stones should be treated with a protee-
tive coating that does not change the color or
chavacter of the stone. A number of chemical
iinishes exist that can be applied to stone to make
it virtually weatherprool. However, some experi-
mentation will probably be necessary to determine
the proper product, method of application and
protective nature of the material.

N

The DAR’s role in the stewardship ol these
monuments should be continued, Fach of the DAR
Chapters responsible for one or more of the
boundary markers should continue in its steward-
ship function. Each Chapter should inspect the
stone site annually and prepare a report thereon
which would he transmitted to the *Keeper of the
Stones” for his files and to inform him
conditions that require attention.

ol

South Cornerstone (See Recommendation No. 8)




Southiwest No. 8
Mile Marker (See Recommendation No. 10)

¥

Northwest' No. 7 MHe Marher (See Recémméndatfoﬁ
No. 9)
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DAUCHTERS of the .
AMFDICAN DEVOLITION

On December 3, 1914 the DAR Committee on
Preservation ol listoric Spots and Records lor the
District of Columbia held a meeting in the audito-
rium of the Woodward and Lothrop Store where
Mr, Fred F. Woodward {(brother of the co-founder
of this store} explained the condition of the D.C.
Boundary Markers and the need lor their preserva-
tion.

The Commitiee selected as its project lor the year
the reclaiming of these stones. On April 7, 1915
the Committee passed & resolution which Mrs.
George P. Conway, Chairman, presented al Suate
Conlerence - “That the D.C. DAR take up for part
of their patriotic work lor the year the preserva-
tion and prolection of the old boundary stones on
which are recorded the oldest records of the
District, by placing an iron [cnce around cach
stone, (o be done by Chapter or individually.” The
recommendation was cndorsed by the State Regent
and adopted by the State.

*Note: The Bicentennial Project of the District of Columbia DDAR,
adopted at the annual State Conference during March 1972, was Lo
seck help in the “*Restoration of the Boundary Stones surrcunding
the Federal City and 10 make publication of their history possible.”
Mrs. Arthur E. Brown, D.C. DAR State Chairman of the United
States of Amurica Bicenennial Committee and Mrs, Eloise T.
Jenkins a Vice Chairman have been most helplutl in furnishing much
of the historical material for this portion of the report and the carly
photographs of the markers.

DAR Dedication Ceremony of the Fencing of
Northwest No. 4 Mile Marker, July 12, 1915.




Grants Tor the use of fland were made with the
sponsoring  Chapter paying the sum of $1 for
permission to erect the lences around the mile-
stonc,

Al of the “deeds” are on [lile in the D.C. DAR
Chapter House Headguarters.

Ammangements were made with the Gichener Iron
Works to install the iron fences measuring about 3
by 3" and 5' high, with the corner posts Lo be setin
cement, at a cost of §18 cach. The four corner-
stone lences were much larger (3" in diameter) the
cost ol cach of these was $43. The Daughters
completed the project by placing a bronze DAR
Marker on cach fence with the name of the
Chapter which paid for the lence und aceepted
responsibility for carc of the stone.

DAR “Deed™ for Permission to Place Fence
Around Northeast No. 3 Mile Marker, 1216.
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Stone No.

South Corncr

Southwest No.
Southwest No,
Southwest No.
Southwest No,
Southwest Nuo.
Southwest No,
Southwest No,
Southwest No.
Southwest No,

West Corner

Northwes1 No.
Northwest No.
Northwest No.
Northwest Nao,
Northwest Na.
MNorthwest No.
Northwest No.
Northwest No.
Northwest No.,

North Corner

Northeast No.
Northeast No.
Northcast No.
Northeast No,
Northeast  No.
Northeast Nuo.
MNortheast  No,
Northecast  No.
Northeast  No.

East Corner

Suvuthcast  Neo,
Southeast  No,
Southeast No.
Southeast  No,
Southeast  No.
Southeast  No.
Southeast  No.
Southcast  No.
Southeast No.
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CURRENT D A It STEWARDSHIP RESPONSIBILITIES

Criginal Responsibility

N.C. DAR

Mt. Vernon Chapter

Mt. Vernon Chapter
American Liberty Chapter
Conltineptal Chapter
Keystone Chapter

Fairfax Co., Va. Chapter
Folrfax Co., Va. Chapter
Unmarked

Falls Church Chapter

Virginia DAR

Richard Arnold Chapter
Old Dominion, Va. Chapter
Sarah St Clair, Va. Chapter
Columbia Chapter

John Hall Chapter
Independence Bell Chaprer
Parriot's Memorial Chapter
Cel. John Donclson Chapter
Margarel Whetten Chapter

State of Maryland DAR
Mary Washington Chapter
Major L’Enfant Chapter
Our Flag Chapter

Elizabuth Jackson Chapter
Constitution Chapler
Livingstone Manor Chapter
National Training School
Little John Bovden Chapter
Capt. Molly Pitcher Chapier

District of Columbia DAR
Sarah Franklin Chapter
MMarcia Burns Chapter

Ruth Brewster Chapter
John Lindsay Chapter
Louisa Adams Chapler
Martha Washington Chaprer
Lucy Holcombe Chapicr
Monticella Chapier
Potomac Chapter

Dare of
Dedication of Fenges

April 30, 1526

June 23,1917
November &, 1921
Junc 15, 1916
May 19, 1916

November 1, 1916

July 12,1915
Qctober 1, 1916
Sune 1917
October |4, 1915
Naovember 4, 1216

April 14, 1916

Qclober 16, 1916
November 18, 1916
Qciober 20, 1917
June 2, 1916

Junc 30, 1926
May 6, 1918

April 15, 1916
May 17,1916
May, 1916

June 26, 1926

QOclober 2B, 1416
October +, 19106

Changes in
Responsibility

Mt. Vernon Chapter

Dr. Elisha Dick Chap., Va,

Themas Nelson Chapter, Va,
Arlington House Chaprer, Va.
The FIRST DEIMCATION
Dolley Madison Chapler

Eugenia Washinglon Chaprer

Duscendants ol '76 Chaprer

Katherine Montgumery Chapter

Manar House Chapter

American Eugle Chaprer

Emily Welson Chapler



